Resolution of the City of Newark, N.I.

NO. 7RI-V

Date of Adoption NOV 0 6 2014

Title Page

Dept/ Agency: Administration/Division of Personne Action: (X) Ratifying (X) Authorizing () Amer Type of Service: Labor Agreement Purpose: Execution of Labor Agreement Entity Name: American Federation of State, Count (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2299 (Inspecentity Address: 516 Johnston Avenue, Jersey City Project Fiscal Impact: \$115,142.00 (Average Costagreement) Total Cost: \$860,404.00. Contract Period: January 1, 2009 through December Contract Basis: () Bid () State Vendor () Prof. () Fair & Open () No Reportable Contributions () () Private Sale () Grant () Sub-recipient (X) n/a Additional Information:	nding y, and Municipal Employees ctors) r, New Jersey 07304 t Per Year Over the Term of per 31, 2016 Ser. () EUS
#). Ch	
15 45 49 5	
ूर्ण । ज ्	
Approved as to Form and Legality on Basis of Facts Set Forth	Factual contents certified by
Corporation Counsel	Title
Council Member	presents the following Resolution:

Resolution of the City of Newark, N.J.

NO. 7RI-V

Date of Adoption NOV 0 6 2014

		/ Manday / Miler
Approved as to Form and Legality on	Basis of Facts Set Forth	Factual contents certified by
KarenBur	12	Kenn Dan & PERSONE Da
	Corporation Counsel	Title
Council Member ()	of the who	presents the following Resolution:

WHEREAS, American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), District 52, Local 2299 (Inspectors) has been certified by the Public Employment Relations Commission as the majority representative for certain employees of the City of Newark, New Jersey, as that term is defined in the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act, N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 et seq; and

WHEREAS, the City of Newark has negotiated in good faith with said majority representative over terms and conditions of employment for the period covering January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2016; and

WHEREAS, as a result of collective bargaining negotiations and settlement, the terms and conditions of employment for the aforementioned period have been imposed upon the parties and are incorporated into the Labor Agreement attached hereto. The agreement shall be binding upon all employees in the unit represented by said majority representative, whether or not they are members of such representative, as provided in N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.3.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWARK, NEW JERSEY, THAT:

- The Mayor and Business Administrator and/or the Assistant Business administrator of the City of Newark, New Jersey, are hereby authorized to execute the aforementioned Labor Agreement on behalf of the City of Newark, New Jersey, with American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2299 (Inspectors), 516 Johnston Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07304, in the amount of \$860,404.00,(\$115,142.00 average cost per year over the Term of Agreement).
- 2. The Municipal Council of the City of Newark hereby ratifies the Agreement and Memorandum of Agreement (collectively "Labor Agreement") from January 1, 2009 to the date of adoption.
 - 3. The executed copy of the Labor Agreement and corresponding Cost Analysis shall be filed with the Office of the City Clerk, and the Public Employment Relations Commission c/o Public Sector Librarian, IMLR Library Rutgers University, Ryders Lane and Clifton Avenue, New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903, as required by N.J.S.A. 34:13A-8.2 and N.J.S.A. 34:13A:16.8(d)(2).
 - An executed copy of the Agreement shall be submitted to the Division of Local Government Services by the Director of Personnel.

FORM4

NOV 0 6 2014

STATEMENT

Resolution ratifying and authorizing the execution of a Labor Agreement between the City of Newark and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, District 52, Local 2299 (Inspectors) covering January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2016, for the projected fiscal impact amount of \$115,142.00 (average cost per year over the term of the Labor Agreement) for a projected total amount of \$860,404.00.

0 4 G 8S 730 MM

CERTIFIED TO BY ME THIS NOV 1 2 2014

Do not use space below this line

RECORD OF COUNCIL VOTE ON FINAL PASSAGE														
Council Member	AYE	NAY	NV	AB	Council Member	AYE	NAY	NV	AB	Council Member	AYE	NAY	NV	АВ
Amador	/				Chaneyfield Jenkins				- 110	Quintana				
Gonzalez		ATT		1	McCallum, Jr.		75			Ramos, Jr.	4			
James					Osborne			-		Crump, President	-			
	✓ Indica	ites Vo	te		A	B · Ab	sent			NV-	Not V	oting		- 17

Adopted at a meeting of the Municipal Council of the City of Newark, N.J.,

President of the Council

Marako

City Clerk

AGREEMENT

between

CITY OF NEWARK

ESSEX COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

and

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES AFL-CIO, LOCAL 2299 (INSPECTORS)

JANUARY 1, 2009 through DECEMBER 31, 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
	PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE II	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	2
ARTICLE III	SENIORITY	3
ARTICLE IV	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	3
ARTICLE V	UNION REPRESENTATIVES	7
ARTICLE V (a)	WORK FORCE CHANGES	8
ARTICLE VI	WORK WEEK	9
ARTICLE VII	OVERTIME	10
ARTICLE VIII	COMPENSATION	11
ARTICLE IX	HOLIDAYS	13
ARTICLE X	VACATION LEAVE	13
ARTICLE XI	HEALTH & DEATH BENEFIT INSURANCE	16
ARTICLE XII	SICK LEAVE	22
ARTICLE XIII	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	24
ARTICLE XIV	EMPLOYEE TRAINING	26
ARTICLE XV	BULLETIN BOARDS	27
ARTICLE XVI	EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE	27
ARTICLE XVII	TRAVEL ALLOWANCE AND UNIFORMS	28
ARTICLE XVIII	DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY	30
ARTICLE XIX	REPRESENTATION FEE	31
ARTICLE XX	NO STRIKE AND NO LOCKOUT PLEDGE	33
ARTICLE XXI	NON DISCRIMINATION	34

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
ARTICLE XXII	SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS	34
ARTICLE XXIII	MICSELLANEOUS	35
ARTICLE XXIV	FULLY BARGAINED PROVISIONS	35
ARTICLE XXV	DURATION	36
ARTICLE XXVI	EXCLUSIVITY	36

PREAMBLE

This agreement, made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2009, by and between the CITY OF NEWARK, IN THE COUNTY OF ESSEX, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and Local 2299, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO (INSPECTORS), (hereinafter referred to as the "Union"), represents the complete and final understanding on all negotiable issues between the City and the Union and is designed to maintain and promote a harmonious relationship between the City and such of its employees who are covered by Article I, Recognition, in order that more efficient and progressive public service may be rendered.

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

In accordance with the "Certification of Representative" of the Public Employment Relations Commission dated April 15, 1971, (Docket No. RO - 102), the City recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective negotiations agent for all inspectors employed by the City of Newark but excluding engineering specifications, inspectors, purchasing inspectors, office clerical, craft and professional employees, policemen, managerial executives, department heads, deputy department heads and supervisors within the meaning of the Act, covered in the aforementioned Certification and more specifically enumerated by job titles in Appendix A. In the event any title covered in this Agreement is reclassified by the New Jersey State Department of Civil Service or by state law, the new titles shall be included as part of the Recognition of this Unit.

ARTICLE II - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

A. The City hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it prior to the signing of this Agreement by the Laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey and of the United States, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following rights:

- 1. To the executive management and administrative control of the City government and its properties and facilities and the activities of its employees; To hire all employees and subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and conditions for continued employment or assignment and to promote and transfer employees;
- To suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action for good and just cause according to law.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties or responsibilities of the City, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices and furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection herewith shall be limited only by the specific and express

terms hereof and in conformance with the Constitution and Laws of New Jersey and of the United States.

C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict the City of its rights, responsibilities and authority under R.S. 40 and R.S. 11 or any other national, state, county or local laws or ordinances.

ARTICLE III - SENIORITY

- A. Seniority is defined as the total length of service of an employee commencing with his latest date of hire in conformance with Civil Service Regulations.
- B. The City will annually post a Seniority List. A copy will be furnished to the local union when posted.
- C. In conformance with Civil Service and other applicable regulations, employees will be given preference in layoffs, recalls and vacation schedules, job and shift assignments.
- D. An employee's continuous service shall be broken by voluntary resignation, discharge or retirement. However, if an employee returns to work in any capacity within two years, Civil Service and Longevity ordinance provisions regarding restoration of Seniority shall be applied.

ARTICLE IV - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Purpose

- 1. The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, an equitable solution to the problems which may arise affecting the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

 The parties agree that this procedure will be kept as informal as may be appropriate.
- 2. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee having a grievance to discuss said grievance with a member of the supervisory staff and having the grievance adjusted without the intervention of the Union.

- B. <u>Definition:</u> The term grievance as used herein is any controversy arising over the interpretation, application or alleged violation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and may be raised by an individual, the Union or the City,
- C. <u>Steps of the Grievance Procedure:</u> The following constitutes the sole and exclusive method for resolving grievances between the parties covered by this Agreement. The union may proceed through each step of this procedure even without a written response from any City official through <u>Step Five</u>, <u>Arbitration</u>. Any step of the grievance procedure may be waived by mutual consent.

Step One

a. A grievance must be filed within seven (7) working days from the date on which the act that is the subject of the grievance occurred or seven (7) working days from the date which the grievant should reasonably have known of its occurrence. Failure to act within said seven (7) working days shall constitute an abandonment of the grievance. The Supervisor shall render a decision within five (5) working days after receipt of the grievance. Unless otherwise extended by mutual agreement, a lack of response by the Supervisor within the prescribed time periods should be construed as a negative response and the grievance may be appealed to Step Two within seven (7) working days.

Step Two

a. In the event a satisfactory settlement has not been reached, the employee shall, in writing and signed, file his complaint with the Division Head (or his representative) within five (5) working days following the determination by the Supervisor.

The Division Head, or his representative, shall render a decision in writing within (5) working days from the receipt of the complaint.

Step Three

- a. In the event the grievance has not been resolved at Step Two, then within five (5) working days following the determination of the Division Head, or within five (5) working days following the time allotted for such determination, the matter may be submitted to the Director of the Department.
- b. The Director of the Department, or his representative, shall review the matter and make a determination within five (5) working days from receipt of the complaint.

Step Four

- a. In the event the grievance has not been resolved at Step Three, then within five (5) working days following the determination of the Director of the Department, the matter may be submitted to the Business Administrator.
- b. The Business Administrator or his representative shall review the matter and make a determination within five (5) working days from the receipt of the complaint.

Step Five - Arbitration

- a. Should the aggrieved person be dissatisfied with the decision of the Business Administrator, the Union may within ten (10) working days request arbitration. The arbitrator shall be chosen in accordance with the Rules of the Public Employment Relations Commission.
- b. However, no arbitration hearing shall be scheduled sooner than thirty (30) days after the final decision by the Business Administrator. In the event the aggrieved elects to pursue Civil Service Procedures, the arbitration hearing shall be cancelled and the

matter withdrawn from arbitration. The Union shall pay whatever costs may have been incurred in processing the case to arbitration.

- c. The arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of the facts presented to him involved in the grievance. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, modify detract from or alter in any way the provisions of this Agreement or any amendment or supplement thereto or to add new provisions to this Agreement or any amendment or supplement thereto.
- d. The cost for the services of the arbitrator shall be shared equally between the City and the Union. Any other expenses incurred, including but not limited to the presentation of witnesses, shall be paid by the party incurring same.
- e. The arbitrator shall set forth his findings of facts and reasons for making the award which shall be binding on the parties within thirty (30) days after conclusion of the arbitration hearing unless agreed to otherwise by the parties.

D. City Grievances

Grievances initiated by the City shall be filed directly with the Union within ten (10) calendar days after the event giving rise to the grievance has occurred. A meeting shall be held within ten (10) calendar days after fling a grievance between the representative of the City and the Union in an earnest effort to adjust the differences between the parties. In the event no such adjustment has been satisfactorily made, either party may file for arbitration in accordance with Step Five above. In the event the City elects to withdraw the matter from arbitration, the City shall pay whatever costs may have been incurred in processing the case to arbitration.

ARTICLE V - UNION REPRESENTATIVES

- A. Accredited representatives of the Union May enter the City facilities or premises for the purpose of observing working conditions or assisting in the adjustment of grievances with the permission of the City. When the Union requests such permission from the appropriate City representatives, permission will not be unreasonably withheld, provided there should be no interference with the normal business of City government.
- B. There shall be no Union meetings on City time. Union meetings may be held on City property provided such facilities are available and further provided that permission is secured in advance from the appropriate department head.
- C. The president and Chief Steward may, act as a Union representative to process all grievances through the established procedure. Grievances at Step I shall be handled by the Local Union representative. The employee Union representative shall be permitted to spend a reasonable amount of time to process grievances provided there is no interference of City services.
- D. The City agrees to furnish to the Union annually, a list of new employees hired, their job classification and type of employment (provisional, temporary, seasonal and permanent).
- E. Employees who have been designated as negotiation representatives of the Union, up to a maximum of one from each division, shall suffer no loss in regular straight time pay for participation in Agreement negotiations, when such negotiations are scheduled during their regular working hours.
- F. The amount of time devoted to Association business other than the processing grievances shall not exceed, in the aggregate, five (5) man days per month.

ARTICLE V (a) - WORK FORCE CHANGES

- A. The City agrees that new work rules or changes in existing rules affecting working conditions will first be negotiated with the union prior to implementation, except in emergency situations.
- B. Selection of candidates from an appropriate Civil Service Eligibility List shall apply whenever a job opening occurs in a competitive Civil Service Classification.
- C. Candidates on an established promotional list shall be given preference in the filling of job openings in accordance with Civil Service procedures.
- D. As Eligibility Lists are exhausted or are nearing their expiration date, the City will make the necessary request of Civil Service for a new examination to insure as far as practical and possible that there is an Eligibility List available at all times.
- E. With the exception of Veterans preference, the City will make its selection to fill vacancies from among the three (3) highest scores on the promotional list as per Civil Service Regulations.
- F. Temporary job opening are defined as job vacancies that may periodically develop in any job classification because of illness, vacation or leave of absence or for any other reason and where the budget line has funds available. An employee assigned to a temporary job opening shall be paid the wage rate established for the job or their own rate, whichever is higher as per above budget consideration.
- G. Demotions as used in this Article means the reassignment not requested by the employee, of an employee from a position in one job classification to a lower paying position in the same job classification or in another job classification or shall be made in accordance with Civil service procedures.

An employee who is reassigned to his/her previous job from a higher classification to which he was provisionally appointed due to his inability to prove to the City that he is able to fulfill

the standards of the job, or pass a Civil Service examination required for appointment, to that job, or who voluntarily relinquishes the job, shall not be considered as demoted.

- H. In the event the City plans to layoff permanent employees for any reason, the City shall notify the Union of such plans before the layoff notices are issued. Layoffs will be made in accordance with Civil Service rules and regulations.
- I. The City will notify the Union at least one (1) week prior to any decisions involving the consolidation or elimination of jobs and insofar as possible and practicable the City will delay implementation until the Union has had at least one discussion with the City on these decisions.

<u>ARTICLE VI - WORK WEEK</u>

Effective April 1986, Employees in this bargaining unit who work thirty five (35) hours per week will begin working forty (40) hours per week and will receive a fourteen percent (14%) salary adjustment.

- A. Variances in the work week shall be permitted by the Director, Department of Health and Welfare when the needs of the services require special scheduling. The Director shall discuss such variances with the Union prior to their being instituted. If the normal work week is to be changed, the Director shall notify and discuss same with the Union prior to their being instituted.
- B. Insofar as possible, employees who are scheduled to report for work and who present themselves for work as scheduled shall be assigned work on the job for which they are scheduled except when there are emergencies which require services to be maintained.
- C. An employee called for emergency duty after he has left the premises will receive a minimum of four (4) hours of work at the rate of time and one half. In the event such time worked is continuous with his regular shift, he shall receive the time and one half rate only for those hours worked outside of the regular shift beyond forty (40) hours as noted in Article VII below.

Effective October 1, 1999, the City will provide a five (5) day notice to affected employees for any changes in work hours.

ARTICLE VII - OVERTIME

A. DEFINITION OF OVERTIME

Authorized work performed in excess of the assigned normal daily or weekly working hours for each class of positions shall be considered overtime. Overtime shall be distributed as equitably as possible and all provisions of this Article shall apply to such overtime which has been properly directed and authorized in advance by the appropriate department head or his designee.

B. <u>COMPENSATORY TIME OFF</u> OR CASH PAYMENT FOR OVERTIME

- 1. Employees who are required to work in excess of their normal work week shall be compensated in cash or compensatory time off at the discretion of the City in accordance with the scheduled noted below:
 - a. For those employees whose normal work week is less than forty (40) hours any overtime work beyond the maximum of that work week and up to forty (40) hours in any calendar week shall be compensated for at straight time (one time) up to forty (40) hours.

Employees shall have the opportunity of requesting particular compensatory days off. Such requests shall be made five (5) working days in advance and shall be subject to the approval of the Division Head. Approval of the Division Head shall not be unreasonably withheld. A reasonable attempt shall be made to provide the employee with the opportunity to utilize compensatory days within the calendar year in which they were earned.

- C. Employees who are required to work on a holiday shall be compensated in cash on the following basis:
- 1. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work on a holiday who have worked less than forty (40) hours in that work week shall receive straight time for ail work on the holiday. Those employees who have worked forty (40) hours or more in that work week exclusive of holidays

shall receive straight time for the holiday as such and time and one-half for all time worked on the holiday.

- 2. Employees who are required to work on a holiday on an emergency basis shall be compensated for such work pursuant to the following schedule:
- a. Those employees who have worked less than forty (40) hours in that work week exclusive of the holiday shall receive straight time pay for the holiday as such, plus time and one-half for all time worked on the holiday.
- b. Those employees who have worked over forty (40) hours in that work week exclusive of the holiday shall receive straight time for the holiday as such, plus double time (2 times) for all the time worked on the holiday.
- D. Any paid leave time will be counted as time worked for the purpose of calculating overtime pay.

ARTICLE VIII - COMPENSATION

Unless specifically provided for under this Article, the current practice regarding step progression/advancement shall cease effective January 1, 2009. Members shall remain at their current step placement for the duration of this Agreement. Instead of advancing to the next step within the salary range each January 1, the increases, if any shall be reflected in each employee's current step.

Section A. 1:

Effective January 1, 2009, the 2008 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%.

Effective January 1, 2010, the 2009 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%.

Effective January 1, 2011, the 2010 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%.

Effective January 1, 2012, the 2011 base salary of all current employees shall be increased by one (1) Step in the newly devised nine (9) step salary range reflected and incorporated herein as "Appendix A".

Effective January 1, 2013, the 2012 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%. However, all eligible employees shall receive a one-time stipend of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00).[1]

^[1] Eligible employees are defined as those active employees who are on the payroll at the time that the disbursement is due. It is understood that said payment in the amount of \$1,000.00 shall be a non-pensionable and a non-reoccurring one-time payment.

Effective January 1, 2014, the 2013 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Effective January 1, 2015, the 2014 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Effective January 1, 2016, the 2015 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Upon expiration of the contract, no base salary adjustments or salary increases to the base will be made until a successor agreement is reached.

- A. 2. All compensation procedures, promotions, increases and increment schedules shall be according to applicable and adopted ordinances.
- A. 3. Longevity Benefits shall be granted to all employees covered by this Agreement in accordance with Ordinance 6S&Fba adopted November 2, 1966. Should an ordinance be adopted amending promotional compensation increases, then said provisions shall apply to employees covered in this Agreement. Said benefits are set forth in this Article.
- A. 4. Longevity Benefits shall be granted to all employees covered by this Agreement in accordance with Ordinance 6S&Fba adopted November 2, 1966. Should an ordinance be adopted amending promotional compensation increases, then said provisions shall apply to employees covered in this Agreement. Said benefits are set forth in this Article.
- A. 5. Effective 1/1/07 any Code Enforcement Officer functioning as a Supervising Code Enforcement Officer for a period of thirty (30) calendar days shall be entitled to a change in rate of pay at the next highest salary step above their current pay in the higher title's salary range.
- B. All compensation procedures, promotion increases and increment schedules shall be according to applicable ordinances.
- C. 1. Longevity Benefits shall be granted to all employees covered in this Agreement in Accordance with Ordinance 6S&Fba adopted November 2, 1976 (as amended by Ordinance 6S&Fb adopted November 21, 1995).

C. 2. LONGEVITY PROGRAM

4% after 10 years of service 6% " 15 " " " 8% " 20 " " " 10% " 25 " " " 12% " 30 " " "

C. 3. Effective January 1, 1990, longevity payments shall be made to each eligible employee covered by this Agreement in accordance with the schedule outlined above with the following changes:

Beginning January 1, 1990, 14% after 30 years of service

- Should an ordinance be adopted amending promotional compensation increase then said provisions shall apply to employees covered in this Agreement.
- D. For all purposes under this Article, longevity payments will be eliminated for any and all employees hired on or after January 1, 2014. Employees rehired through the Special Reemployment will be eligible for longevity payments provided that the original date of hire predates January 1, 2014.

ARTICLE IX - HOLIDAYS

Paid holidays shall be granted to all employees subject to this Agreement in accordance with the schedule ordained by the Municipal Council to be effective commencing January of each year.

The employee must be in active pay status the day before the holiday and the day after a holiday in order to receive pay for said holiday. Based on active pay status, sick, personal and vacation shall be considered time worked.

ARTICLE X - VACATION LEAVE

A. NEW EMPLOYEES - FIRST YEAR OF SERVICE

1. Effective on date of signing, new employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to vacation leave with pay, based on their years of service and in accordance with N.J.S.A.

11:24A et. seg. N.J.A.C. 4:1-17 et seq., and as provided in Section 2:24-65, Title 2 of the Revised Ordinances of the City of Newark, New Jersey, 2000, as follows:

New employees (hired after November 1, 1989)

During an employee's first calendar year of employment, vacation leave shall be earned at the rate of one (1) working day of vacation for each month of service from his/her date of original employment continuing on this basis through the remainder of the calendar year. An employee hired on the first (1st) day of the month through the eighth (8th) day of the month shall receive a one (1) day vacation credit for the month. An employee hired on the ninth (9th) day of the month through the twenty-third (23rd) day of the month shall receive a one-half (1/2) day vacation credit for the month. An employee hired on the twenty-fourth (24th) day of the month through the last day of the month shall receive no vacation credit for the month. As of January 1 following an employee's original date of employment and for each subsequent January 1 the following schedule shall apply:

Employees Hired Prior To Signing

Twelve (12) working days vacation thereafter for every year and up to the completion or nine (9) years of service.

Seventeen (17) working days vacation after the completion of nine (9) years of service and up to the completion of nineteen (19) years of service.

Twenty-one (21) working days after the completion of nineteen (19) years of service and up to the completion of twenty-five (25) years of service.

Twenty-five (25) working days vacation after the completion of twenty-five (25) years of service and thereafter.

For the purposes of efficient vacation scheduling and in accordance with the above schedule, an employee may be credited with vacation leave (in each appropriate calendar year) prior to the leave earned with the assumption that the employee will be employed for the full calendar year. However, an employee whose service is terminated or is placed on leave of absence

without pay prior to the end of the calendar year shall have all non-earned vacation leave deducted from his/her last paycheck. An employee who has been terminated shall be entitled to the vacation allowance of all accumulated time plus vacation days prorated for the current year based upon the number of months worked in the calendar year in which the termination or leave of absence without pay becomes effective. An employee whose service is terminated between the first (1st) and eighth (8th) day of the month shall not receive vacation credit for the month. An employee whose service is terminated between the ninth (9th) and twenty-third (23rd) day of the month shall receive one-half (1/2) months' vacation credit for the month. An employee lured on the twenty-fourth (24th) day of the month and thereafter shall receive one (1) months' vacation credit for the month.

2. Where in any calendar year the vacation leave or any part thereof is not granted by reason of pressure of the City's business, such vacation periods or parts thereof not granted shall accumulate and shall be granted during the next succeeding year only. In determining all vacation leaves, the years of service of such employee's prior and subsequent to the adoption this section shall be used.

3. Vacation Leave Due Upon Separation

- a. An employee who is retiring or who has otherwise separated shall be entitled to the vacation allowance for the current year prorated upon the number of months worked in the calendar year in which the separation or retirement becomes effective any vacation leave which may have been carried over from the preceding calendar year.
- b. Whenever a permanent employee dies having to his credit any annual vacation leave, there shall be calculated and paid to his estate a sum of money equal to the compensation figure on his salary rate at the time of death.

ARTICLE XI - HEALTH & DEATH BENEFIT INSURANCE

ARTICLE XI - HEALTH & DEATH BENEFIT INSURANCE

The provisions of this Article shall be administered in accord with the provisions of P.L. 2011, Chapter 78, as presently provided.

During the lifetime of this agreement, the City shall provide Health Insurance, Dental Plan, and Prescription Plan to all eligible and enrolled employees, eligible and enrolled dependents and eligible and enrolled Civil Union partners as follows:

Employees who are hired Permanently shall serve a minimum of thirty (30) days of continuous service with the City to be eligible for health and medical insurance coverage in all instances. Employees who are hired Provisionally shall serve a minimum of ninety (90) days of continuous service with the City to be eligible for health and medical insurance coverage in all instances.

A. MEDICAL PLAN

The employee will be eligible for his choice of:

- 1. Horizon Traditional Plan (with \$250 per person Major Medical Deductible*); OR
- 2. Horizon Direct Access Plan; OR
- Horizon Exclusive Provider Organization (EPO)
 Eligible/Enrolled Dependent Children covered until 11:59 pm on the day before the 26th birthday occurs

*Effective June 1, 2009, the lifetime Major Medical maximum for Horizon Traditional Plan increased from \$1,000,000 to UNLIMITED for active employees.

B. DENTAL PLAN

The employee will be eligible for his choice of:

- Horizon Dental Choice Plan E (No annual maximum; no benefits provided if utilizing the services of an out-of-network provider); OR
- 2. Horizon Dental Option Plan(Open Panel 80/20 plan; \$1,000 annual maximum benefit); OR
- Group Dental Health Administration (No annual maximum; no benefits provided if utilizing the services of an out-of-network provider; dependents covered until 11:59 pm on the day before the 26th birthday occurs)

Eligible/Enrolled Dependent Children covered until they reach their 19th birthday; or until they reach their 23rd birthday if a full-time student – proof required)

C. PRESCRIPTION PLAN

The employee will be eligible for a Prescription Drug Plan (with \$10 co-pay for "Brand" drugs and \$5 co-pay for "Generic" drugs)

1 - 34 day supply = 1 Copayment

35 - 60 day supply = 2 Copayments

61 - 90 day supply = 3 Copayments

Eligible/Enrolled Dependent Children covered until 11:59 pm on the day before the 26th birthday occurs

D. An employee represented by this collective bargaining unit who is eligible for dependent coverage under any medical, dental or prescription drug benefit plan sponsored by the City of Newark shall be entitled only to such dependent coverage for said plan and shall not be entitled to

coverage as a subscriber to said health plans provided under this agreement. Where more than one family member is represented by this Agreement, the subscriber shall be the employee family-member with the earliest date of birth.

E. Effective January 1, 2009, all active employees will make a *(non-refundable)* ten dollar (\$10.00) per month contribution toward their retiree health benefits.

F. RETIREE BENEFITS

Eligible Retirees and their eligible/enrolled dependents and eligible/enrolled civil union partner will be entitled to lifetime health insurance coverage until the date of the retiree's death as indicated below. (Eligible retirees are those with a minimum of 25 years of City of Newark service in the aggregate.)

Effective June 1, 2008:

- All Medicare (Parts A and B) eligible retirees and their eligible dependents (legal spouse or
 eligible Civil Union partner) will be *ineligible* for the City's traditional retiree health plan offered
 by Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey (hospitalization/med-surgical).
- All Medicare (Parts A and B) eligible/enrolled retirees and their eligible/enrolled spouse or Civil Union partners who are entitled to City funded retiree health benefits will be entitled to enroll in the contracted carrier-provided Medicare retiree plan. The City agrees to assume the full employer billed cost of the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan for the eligibly enrolled population.
- The City will no longer provide a separate Medicare supplemental retiree health insurance plan for Medicare eligible retirees or their Medicare eligible dependents. The carrier-provided

Medicare retiree plan will be the sole employer-sponsored retiree health benefit plan for all Medicare eligible retirees and their eligible spouse/Civil Union partners.

- The enrollment under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will be based on single member enrollment. Therefore, the eligible retiree and eligible spouse/Civil Union partner will be provided with separate enrollment under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan.
- All confirmed Medicare ineligible (based on notification from Medicare indicating Part A benefit
 is not "premium free") retirees and their spouse/Civil Union partner will be entitled to the
 traditional retiree health plan noted in their union contract or by health benefit entitlement
 established by ordinance.
- Eligible retiree's entitlement under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will continue for the remainder of the retiree's life.
- Medicare eligible retirees that reside outside of the 50 United States are ineligible to participate in the carrier-provided Medicare retiree plan. Traditional retiree plan entitlement will continue for retirees, their spouses and eligible Civil Union partners that have permanent residence outside of the 50 United States. They will receive benefits in accordance with the contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.
- Retirees and their eligible spouse who are at least age 65 but ineligible (based on notification from Medicare) for Medicare Part A or B must submit the original notification letter they received from Medicare to the City. These retirees will be ineligible to enroll in the carrier-provided Medicare retiree plan and must remain in the traditional retiree plan, receiving benefit

levels in accordance with the union contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.

- Traditional retiree plan entitlement will continue for dependent children of the Medicare eligible
 retiree. The benefit levels will be provided in accordance with the contract or by health benefit
 entitlement established by ordinance.
- Uninterrupted member enrollment in the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan is contingent upon timely Part A/B premium payments to Medicare which are made by the Medicare eligible retiree and spouse.
- If reenrollment in the carrier provided Medicare plan is required, the enrollment will be subject to the established enrollment periods provided for the City subscribers and their eligible dependents.
- Effective January 1, 2009 the City will provide eligible retirees and their eligible dependents or eligible Civil Union partner with a Prescription plan that requires a 20% copayment.

G. MEDICARE PART B REIMBURSEMENT

• All employees and their eligible spouses and/or civil union partners who retire on or after January 1, 1998, and who have earned Medicare Part A coverage shall be reimbursed by the City at the rate of fifty percent (50%) for the purchase of Medicare Part B upon proper notification by the retirees to the City. In no case will Part B reimbursement be made for a retroactive period beyond one year from date of receipt of the required documents from the retiree and/or spouse.

H. LIFE INSURANCE

Effective January 1, 1997, Life insurance (death benefit and accidental death and dismemberment coverage) was eliminated for active employees and for those who retire on or after January 1, 1997.

I. CASH WAIVER INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Effective January 1, 2009, A Voluntary Cash Waiver Incentive Program was implemented, where the employee would receive from the City, a pro-rata payment equal to 10% of the annual premium for each benefit plan that is waived at the end of the calendar year, so long as proof of alternative coverage is submitted. If an employee who is the spouse of another City employee must waive his /her benefit plan and becomes a dependent under his/her spouse's plan by virtue of the clause below, the pro-rata payment shall be equal to 5% of the annual premium. In the event of divorce, or loss of alternative coverage, the employee who voluntarily waived his/her coverage will be allowed to re-enroll in the benefits plan provided s/he submits proof of involuntary loss of coverage within 60 days of such loss of coverage.

An employee who is represented by this bargaining unit who is married to another City employee, only one spouse shall be entitled to be a subscriber under any benefit plan offered by the City, and the spouse shall be entitled to dependent coverage under the plan of the subscriber spouse. If the benefit plans of the labor contacts are equal, the subscriber shall be the employee with the earliest date of birth in the calendar year. If the benefits plans under the two labor contacts differ, the contract with the highest benefit level will prevail. Where one employee retires, the remaining active employee becomes the primary subscriber; the retiring spouse becomes the dependent. Where they are both retired and one spouse dies, the retiree will be allowed to enroll as a primary subscriber for the benefit plans to which he/she is entitled. In the event of divorce or

the death of the primary subscriber, the dependent employee shall be allowed to enroll for the benefits plans to which he/she is entitled.

- J. All employees hired after April 26, 1979 are required to become members of the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) of New Jersey, as a condition of employment.
- K. The City reserves the right to change insurance carriers or provide insurance on a self-insured basis during the lifetime of the Agreement so long as substantially similar benefits but no less than those presently in effect are provided. The City shall notify the Association if such change is made. In any event, there shall be no interruption of medical benefit coverage for employees covered by this Agreement.
- L. If health and medical insurance coverage, as described herein, is provided by a contract of insurance, the liability of the City shall be limited to the terms of the contract, provided the contract is in accord with the Agreement.

ARTICLE XII - SICK LEAVE

A. General

Every employee covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to paid sick leave benefits per annum according to N.J.A.C. 4A:6-1.1 et seq., of the Department of Civil Service Regulations for the State of New Jersey, as periodically revised, and the applicable provisions of N.J.S.A. 11A:6-1 et seq.

B. Service Credit for Sick Leave

1. All permanent employees, or full time provisional employees shall be entitled to sick leave with pay based on their aggregate years of service.

2. Sick leave may be utilized by employees when they are unable to perform their work by reason of personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease. Sick leave may also be used for short periods because of death in the employee's immediate family or for the attendance of the employee upon a member of the immediate family who is seriously ill.

C. Amount of Sick Leave

1. Sick leave with pay shall accrue to any full time employee on the basis of one working day per month during the remainder of the first calendar year of employment after initial appointment and fifteen (15) days every calendar year thereafter.

New Hires (hired after November 1, 1989)

- a. An employee hired on the first (1st) day of the month through the eighth (8th) day of the month shall receive a sick leave credit of one (1) day for the month. An employee hired on the ninth (9th) day of the month through the twenty-third (23rd) day of the month shall receive a one-half (1/2) day sick leave credit for the month. An employee hired on the twenty-fourth (24th), day of the month through the last day of the month shall receive no sick leave credit for the month.
- b. For the purposes of efficient sick leave scheduling and in accordance with the above schedules, an employee may be credited with sick leave (in each appropriate calendar year) prior to the leave actually being earned with the assumption that the employee will be employed for the full calendar year; however, an employee whose service is terminated or is placed on leave of absence without pay prior to the end of the calendar year shall have all non-earned used sick leave deducted from his/ her last paycheck.
- c. An employee whose service is terminated between the first (1st) and eighth (8th) day of the month shall not receive sick leave credit for the month. An employee whose service is terminated between the ninth (9th) and the twenty-third (23rd) day of the month shall receive one-half (1/2) month's sick leave credit for the month. An

employee whose service is terminated on the twenty-four (24th) day of the month and thereafter shall receive one (I) month's sick leave credit for the month.

 Any amount of sick leave allowance not used in any calendar year shall accumulate to the employee's credit from year to year to be used if and when needed for such purpose.

D. Reporting of Absence on Sick Leave

- 1. If an employee is absent for reasons that entitle him to sick leave, his supervisor shall be notified promptly, i.e. at the employee's usual reporting time, except in those work situations where notice must be made prior to the employee's starting time.
- a. An employee who has been absent on sick leave for periods totaling ten (10) days in one calendar year consisting of periods of less than five (5) days shall submit acceptable medical evidence for any additional sick leave in that year unless such illness is of a chronic or recurring nature requiring recurring absences of one day or less in which case only one certificate shall be necessary for a period of six (6) months.
- b. The City may require proof of illness of an employee on sick leave whenever such requirements appear reasonable and warranted under the circumstances. Abuse of sick leave shall be cause for disciplinary action personal illness, as a condition of his return to duty, to be examined at the expense of the City, by a physician designated by the City. The physician designated by the City may consult with the employee's physician and shall establish whether the employee is capable of performing his normal duties and that his return will not jeopardize the health of other employees.

<u>ARTICLE XIII - LEAVES OF ABSENCE</u>

A. Employees subject to this Agreement may be granted a leave of absence in accordance with applicable Civil Service Rules for the State of New Jersey.

- B. Employee representatives shall be permitted an aggregate of fifteen (15) working days each calendar year to attend Union conventions. (e.g. three (3) employees representatives for five (5) days or five (5) representatives for three (3) days each.
- C. Employees who are scheduled for Jury Duty shall contact their Department Director and the Personnel Director who will make a determination concerning the needs of the City, and whether or not the City will request an excuse on behalf of such employee, if the employee is thereafter assigned to Jury Duty, the City will grant a leave of absence with pay.
- D. Employees who are required, in connection with City business to appear before a Court or other public body on any matter involving the City, shall be granted leave with pay for the period of said appearance.

E. Payment for Unused Sick Time at Retirement

Effective January 1, 1983, the City agrees, to pay for unused sick time at the time of retirement under the following formula:

0' - 50 days - no payment

51 - 150 days - 25% of its value (35% of its value effective January 1, 1992).

151 - days or more - 50% of its value to a maximum payment of up to \$12,000.00. (60% of its value effective January 1, 1993) to a maximum payment of \$12,000 (\$15,000.00 effective January 1, 1994).

F. Bereavement Leave

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be granted leave at full pay for up to three (3) working days per event, but no more than two (2) incidents within a calendar year with full pay in the event of death in the immediate family. Such leave shall be treated as administrative leave and not charged against the employees' leave record. Employees absent as

a result of the death of an immediate family member shall submit verification of relationship. Verification shall include, death certificate, mortician affidavit, newspaper obituary or funeral program. Upon the employees return to work from said leave, they shall submit the verifying documentation to the Personnel Department which will be attached to their personnel file.

Immediate family is defined as: Spouse, Children, Parents, Legal Guardians, Mother-In-Law, Father-In-Law, Siblings, Grandparents, Step-parents, Step-Children, Foster Children, a domestic partner or member of a civil union, as defined in the "Domestic Partnership Act" (N.J.S.A. 26-8A-1 et seq.) and the "Civil Union Act" (N.J.S.A. 37:1-28, et seq.) respectively.

<u> ARTICLE XIV - EMPLOYEE TRAINING</u>

- A. The City and the Union agree that training is a function of management and an essential requirement for all employees to promote acceptable and increased levels of competence.
- B. The Union agrees that it will encourage members of the bargaining unit to maintain acceptable and increased levels of competence by:
- 1. Keeping abreast of changes occurring in their field, craft, trade, profession or occupation.
- Participating in development activities in order to perform more efficiently in current and future assignments. These development activities may include on-the-job training and classroom training.
- Realizing that not all training and development are directly related to their jobs and that they have a responsibility for self-development.
- C. The City will plan and provide for training and development of employees to meet acceptable and increasing levels of competence.



D. The City and the Union agree to meet, upon written notice of either party, to consider training and development programs for employees covered by this Agreement. Such programs may include partial or full reimbursement by the City for approved courses which are completed by employees.

ARTICLE XV BULLETIN BOARDS

Bulletin Boards shall be made available by the City at each work location for the use of the Union for the purpose of posting Union announcements and other information of non-controversial nature. The Director of the Department or his representative may have removed from the Bulletin Boards any material which does not conform with the intent and provision of the Article.

ARTICLE XVI - EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE

- A. The Union agrees to support and cooperate with the City to improve employee performance. In furtherance thereof the Union shall encourage all employees to:
 - 1. Be in attendance and punctual for scheduled work hours, unless unavoidably prevented;
 - 2. Give such effort to their work as is consistent with the requirements thereof;
 - 3. Avoid waste in the utilization of materials and supplies;
 - 4. Maintain and improve levels of performance;
 - 5. Assist in preventing accidental injury to themselves and suggest other improvements where possible;
 - 6. Assist where possible in building good will between the City, the Union and the public at large.
- B. The Union recognizes that it is the City's responsibility to determine levels of performance for employees, and to establish standards and methods to provide services to the public in the most efficient manner possible.

- C. Pursuant to Civil Service Rules and Regulations, standards for acceptable levels of performance may be established and employees evaluated by the City in relation to the duties and responsibilities of each job.
- D. An acceptable level of employee performance shall be attained only if performance is adequate and acceptable in all major aspects of the job requirements. Consideration shall be given to all aspects of performance including requisite attitudes and conduct as well as production and efficiency of work. Consistently poor judgment, lack of diligence, undependability, inaccurate work, improper use of leave, and personal relationships which hamper individual or group effectiveness are representative of conduct and attitudes which may be the basis for disapproval of a salary increment or adjustment.
 - E. Appeals from denial of salary increment or adjustment for failure to meet acceptable levels of employee performance may be processed through the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XVII - TRAVEL ALLOWANCE AND UNIFORMS

- A. Local travel allowance shall be provided to employees covered by this agreement for expenses incurred for City business.
- Each inspector hired after January 1, 1989 shall provide an operable working vehicle for use at work necessary to complete his/her work assignments. The travel allowable shall apply only upon City discretion, to complete his/her authorized assignment
- Effective January 1, 2006 the Travel Allowance shall increase to \$15.00 (fifteen dollars) per day.

- 3. Effective January 1, 2007 the Travel Allowance shall be increased to \$20.00 (twenty dollars) per day for each working day in which the employee travels on City business. Such travel must be done upon the authorization by the City.
- 4. Effective January 1, 2008 the Travel Allowance will be increased to \$25.00 per day for each day traveled on city business.
- 5. As concerns employees covered by this Agreement, only when the City does not provide them with a city vehicle for their use in conducting business will such employee then receive a local travel allowance of \$25.00 per day for each day traveled on city business.
- B. Beginning in 2002 throughout the duration of this agreement each employee shall be provided a summer uniform (a short sleeve shirt and a pair of pants) and a winter uniform (a long sleeve shirt and a pair of pants.) Beginning on January 1, 2008, three (3) sets of uniforms will be provided annually, a second winter uniform and a second summer uniform in alternate years. A clothing allowance will be provided to each employee for the purchase, maintenance and replacement of uniforms.
 - 1. Effective January 1, 2009, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
 - 2. Effective January 1, 2010, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
 - 3. Effective January 1, 2011, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year
 - 4. Effective January 1, 2012, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
 - 5. Effective January 1, 2013, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
 - 6. Effective January 1, 2014, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
 - 7. Effective January 1, 2015, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.

8. Effective January 1, 2016, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.

The requirement to wear and maintain uniforms, as well as the composition of uniforms shall remain as decisions within the sole discretion of the City. The union will be notified of any change as to the uniform requirement five days prior to its implementation.

ARTICLE XVIII - DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY

- A. The City agrees to deduct from the salaries of its employees subject to this Agreement dues for the Union. Such deductions shall be made in compliance with chapter 310, Public Laws of 1967, N.J.S.A. (R.S.) 52:14-15, 9e as amended. Said monies together with records of any corrections shall be transferred to the union office by the fifteenth (15th) of each month following the monthly pay period in which deductions were made.
- B. If during the life of this Agreement them shall be any change in the rate of membership dues, the Union will furnish to the City either new authorizations from its members showing the authorized deduction for each employee or an official notification on the letterhead of the Union and signed by the President and Secretary of the union advising of the changed deduction.
- C. The Union will provide the necessary "Check-off Authorization" form and the Union will secure the signatures of its members on the form and deliver the signed forms to the Director of Finance. The union shall indemnify, defend and save the City harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the City or in reliance upon the official notification on the letterhead of the Union and signed by the President and Secretary of the Union advising of such changed deductions.

ARTICLE XIX - REPRESENTATION FEE

1 Purpose of Fee

Beginning thirty (30) days after agreement on this contract, all eligible non-member employees in this unit will be required to pay to the majority representative a representation fee in lieu of dues for services rendered by the majority representative. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require any employee to become a member of the majority representative.

2. Amount of Fee

Prior to the beginning of each contract year, the Union will notify the City in writing of the amount of regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessments charged by the Union to its own members for that contract year, and the amount of the representation fee for that contract year. Any changes in the representation fee structure during the contract year shall be in accordance with the above.

The representation fee in lieu of dues shall be in an amount equivalent to the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessments charged by the majority representative to its own members less the cost of benefits financed through the dues, fees and assessments and available to or benefiting only its members, but in no event shall such fee exceed 85% of the regular membership dues, fees and assessments.

3. <u>Deduction and Transmission of Fee</u>

After verification by the City that an employee must pay the representation fee, the City will deduct the fee for all eligible employees in accordance with this Article.

The mechanics of the deduction of representation fees and the transmission of such fees to the Union will as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues to the Union.

The City shall deduct the representation fee as soon as possible after the tenth 10th day following reentry into this unit for employees who previously served in a position identified as excluded

or confidential, for individuals reemployed in this unit from a reemployment list, for employees returning from leave without pay, and for previous employee members who become eligible for the representation fee because of nonmember status.

The City shall deduct the representation fee from a new employee as soon as possible after thirty (30) days from the bargaining date of employment in a position in this unit.

4. <u>Demand and Return System</u>

The representation fee in lieu of dues only shall be available to the Union if the procedures hereafter are maintained by the Union.

The burden of proof under this system is on the Union.

The Union shall return any part of the representation fee paid by the employee which represents the employee's additional pro rata share of expenditures by the Union that is either in aid of activities or cause of a partisan political or ideological nature only incidentally related to the terms and conditions of employment, or applied toward the cost of any other benefits available only to members of the majority representative.

The employee shall be entitled to a review of the amount of, the representation fee by requesting the Union to substantiate the amount charged for the representation fee. This review shall be accorded in conformance with the internal steps and procedures established by the Union

The union shall submit a copy of the Union review systems to the City. The deduction of the representation fee shall be available only if the Union establishes and maintains this review system.

If the employee is dissatisfied with the Union's decision, he may appeal to a threemember board established by the Governor.

5. <u>City Held Harmless</u>

The Union hereby agrees that it will indemnify and hold the city harmless from any claims, actions, proceedings or judgments brought by any employee in the negotiations unit which arise from the provision of this Article. The City shall not be liable to the Union for any

retroactive or past due representation fee for an employee who was identified by the City as excluded confidential or in good faith was mistakenly or inadvertently omitted from deductions of the representation fee.

6. Legal Requirements

Provisions in this clause are further conditioned upon. all other requirements set by statute and applicable law.

7. <u>Notification Concerning Employees</u>

The City agrees to provide to the Union, on a semi-annual basis, a complete up-to-date listing of all employees covered by this Contract. Such listing shall include the employee's job classification, work location, home address and membership status, as it appears on the record of the City. The Union shall disclose such information only to its officials and representatives whose dudes require access to such information. The City will notify all employees whose titles are listed in Appendix A on this Contract that AFSCME is the only employee organization that can represent them in matters pertaining to wages, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment.

ARTICLE XX - NO STRIKE AND NO LOCKOUT PLEDGE

- A. During the term of this Agreement the Union agrees on behalf of itself and each of its members that there will be no strike of any kind and the City agrees that it will not cause any lockout.
- B. The Union covenants and agrees that neither the Union nor any person acting in its behalf will cause, authorize or support, nor will any of its members take part in any strike (i.e. the concerted failure to report for duty, or willful absence of an employee from his position, stoppage or work or in whole or in part, from the full, faithful and proper performance of the employee's duties of employment), work stoppage, slowdown, walkout or other job action

against the City. The Union agrees that such action would constitute a material breach of this Agreement.

- C. In the event of strike, slowdown, walkout or job action it is covenanted and agreed that participation in any such activity by any Union shall be deemed grounds for termination of employment of *such* employee or employees subject, however, to the application of the Civil Service Law.
- D. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or restrict the City on its right to seek and obtain such judicial relief as it may be entitled to have in law or in equity for injunction or damages or both in the event of such breach by the Union or its members.

<u>ARTICLE XXI - NON DISCRIMINATION</u>

- A. There shall be no discrimination by the City or the Union against an employee on account of race, color, creed, sex, or national origin.
- B. There shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion by the City or any of its representatives against any of the employees covered under this Agreement because of their membership or non-membership in the Union. The Union, its members and agents shall not discriminate against, interfere with, restrain or coerce any employees covered under this Agreement who are not members of the Union.

ARTICLE XXII - SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS

If any provisions of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held invalid by operation of law or by a Court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such provisions shall be operative but all other provisions shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect.

<u>ARTICLE XXIII – MISCELLANEOUS</u>

A. Insofar as practical and possible within the limits of budgetary and space considerations, the City will provide parking facilities for employees covered by this Agreement at the various work locations. In the event the City establishes a policy of charging its employees for the use of parking facilities this policy shall apply to the employees covered by this Agreement.

- B. The City will provide copies of this Agreement to all employees of the Bargaining Unit and all new employees as they are hired. The costs for reproduction of such Agreements will be borne jointly by the City and the Union.
- C. It is understood by and between the parties that any provisions of this Agreement requiring municipal action to permit its implementation by amendment of law or by providing additional funds thereof shall not become effective until appropriate municipal action has been taken.

ARTICLE XXIV - FULLY BARGAINED PROVISIONS

- A. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargainable issues which were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge of contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.
- B. This Agreement can be modified in whole or in part by the parties only by an instrument in writing executed by both parties.

ARTICLE XXV - DURATION

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of January 1, 2009 and shall be in effect to and including December 31, 2016, without any reopening date.

The Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter, unless one party or the other gives notice, in writing, at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement of a desire to change, modify or terminate the Agreement.

ARTICLE XXVI – EXCLUSIVITY

Dues deduction for any employee in the bargaining unit shall be limited to AFSCME, the majority representative. Employees shall be eligible to withdraw such authorization only upon the filing of Notice of Withdrawal. Such notice shall be effective to halt deductions as of the July I next succeeding the date on which the Notice of Withdrawal is filed, in accordance with Title 52:14-15.9e of the New Jersey Statutes revised, December 22, 1981.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties her Jersey as of this, day of	reto have set their hands and seals at Newark , 2014.	, New
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	FOR THE CITY OF NEWARK:	
By Lard Dun 2/3/19 KAREN BROWN, CORPORATION COUNSEL	By: HON RAS J. BARAKA, MAYOR	Dated
FOR AFSCME COUNCIL 52 - LOCAL 2299		
By: 12/3/14 STEVE TULLY, Dated AFSCME COUNCIL 52	By:	1-7-15 Dated
By: 12/3/14 ALBERTO VENTURA, Dated PRESIDENT	By: Michael Greene, ASSISTANT BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR	12/3/14 Dated
	By: Kecia Daniels, PERSONNEL DIRECTOR	12-2-14 Dated



CITY OF NEWARK

SALARY & TITLE APPENDIX "A" AFSCME - LOCAL 2299 (2009-2016)

Position	Title Code	Hours	Effective Date	Salary	Range	Steps
Assistant Chief Sanitary Inspector, Contagious Diseases	00417	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$57,880.00 \$58,458.80 \$58,458.80 \$59,627.98 \$60,820.54 \$62,036.95	\$72,462.00 \$73,186.62 \$73,186.62 \$74,650.35 \$76,143.36 \$77,666.23	8 9 9 9 9
Building Inspector	00924	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$50,012.00 \$50,512.12 \$50,512.12 \$51,522.36 \$52,552.81 \$51,522.36	\$62,559.00 \$63,184.59 \$63,184.59 \$64,448.28 \$65,737.25 \$64,448.28	8 9 9 9
Building Subcode Official	05048	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$64,285.00 \$64,927.85 \$64,927.85 \$66,226.41 \$67,550.94 \$68,901.96	\$80,979.00 \$81,788.79 \$81,788.79 \$83,424.57 \$85,093.06 \$86,794.92	8 9 9 9
Chief Code Enforcement Officer (Represented)	07381	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$48,473.00 \$48,957.73 \$48,957.73 \$49,936.88 \$50,935.62 \$51,954.33	\$78,004.00 \$78,784.04 \$78,784.04 \$80,359.72 \$81,966.91 \$83,606.25	10 9 9 9 9
Chief License Inspector	01153	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$37,971.00 \$38,350.71 \$38,350.71 \$39,117.72 \$39,900.07 \$40,698.07	\$64,242.00 \$64,884.42 \$64,884.42 \$66,182.11 \$67,505.75 \$68,855.87	16 9 9 9 9
Chief Registered Environmental Health Specialist Public Health	01205	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$64,285.00 \$64,927.85 \$64,927.85 \$66,226.41 \$67,550.94 \$68,901.96	\$80,979.00 \$81,788.79 \$81,788.79 \$83,424.57 \$85,093.06 \$86,794.92	8 9 9 9
Chief Sanitation Inspector	01209	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$38,526.00 \$38,911.26 \$38,911.26 \$39,689.49 \$40,483.28 \$41,292.95	\$61,395.00 \$62,008.95 \$62,008.95 \$63,249.13 \$64,514.11 \$65,804.39	10 9 9 9 9

					/R1-V	110614
Chief Transportation Inspector	05919	40	2009-2011 2012	\$33,627.00 \$33,963.27	\$55,990.00 \$56,549.90	16 9
			2013 2014	\$33,963.27	\$56,549.90	9
			2015	\$34,642.54	\$57,680.90	9
			2016	\$35,335.39 \$36,042.10	\$58,834.52	9
			2010	φου,υ42.10	\$60,011.21	9
Code Enforcement Officer	01285	40	2009-2011	\$35,285.00	\$49,400.00	10
			2012	\$35,637.85	\$49,894.00	9
			2013	\$35,637.85	\$49,894.00	9
			2014	\$36,350.61	\$50,891.88	9
			2015	\$37,077.62	\$51,909.72	9
			2016	\$37,819.17	\$52,947.91	9
Code Enforcement Officer	07594	40	2009-2011	\$31,033.00	\$45,306.00	16
Trainee			2012	\$31,343.33	\$45,759.06	9
			2013	\$31,343.33	\$45,759.06	9
			2014 2015	\$31,970.20	\$46,674.24	9
			2015	\$32,609.60 \$33,261.79	\$47,607.72	9 9
Construction Inspector	01338	40			\$48,559.87	
Construction inspector	01336	40	2009-2011 2012	\$30,008.00 \$30,308.08	\$49,400.00	16
			2012	\$30,308.08	\$49,894.00 \$49,894.00	9
			2014	\$30,914.24	\$50,891.88	9 9
			2015	\$31,532.52	\$51,909.72	9
			2016	\$32,163.17	\$52,947.91	9
Electrical Inspector	01699	40	2009-2011 2012	\$50,012.00	\$62,559.00	8
			2013	\$50,512.12 \$50,512.12	\$63,184.59 \$63,184.59	9 9
			2014	\$51,522.36	\$64,448.28	9
			2015	\$52,552.81	\$65,737.25	9
			2016	\$53,603.87	\$67,052.00	9
Electrical Subcode Official	05046	40	2009-2011 2012	\$64,285.00 \$64,927.85	\$80,979.00	8 9
			2013	\$64,927.85	\$81,788.79 \$81,788.79	9
			2014	\$66,226.41	\$83,424.57	9
			2015	\$67,550.94	\$85,093.06	9
			2016	\$68,901.96	\$86,794.92	9
Elevator Inspector	01717	40	2009-2011 2012	\$30,008.00 \$30,308.08	\$49,400.00	16
			2013	\$30,308.08	\$49,894.00 \$49,894.00	9 9
			2014	\$30,914.24	\$50,891.88	9
			2015	\$31,532.52	\$51,909.72	9
			2016	\$32,163.17	\$52,947.91	9
Fire Protection Inspector P/T (Unscheduled)	05053	40	2009-2011 2012	\$25.63 \$25.89	\$25.63	N/A
TTT (Ondonoualou)			2012	\$25.89	\$25.89 \$25.89	N/A
			2014	\$26.41	\$26.41	N/A N/A
			2015	\$26.94	\$26.94	N/A
			2016	\$27.48	\$27.48	N/A
Housing Inspector	02071	40	2009-2011	\$30,008.00	\$49,400.00	16
			2012 2013	\$30,308.08	\$49,894.00	9
			2013	\$30,308.08 \$30,914.24	\$49,894.00	9
			2015	\$30,914.24 \$31,532.52	\$50,891.88 \$51,909.72	9 9
			2016	\$32,163.17	\$51,909.72 \$52,947.91	9
				+,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	ψο <u>-</u> 10-τι.01	ð

						* *************************************
Housing Inspector Trainee	02074	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$23,055.00 \$23,285.55 \$23,285.55 \$23,751.26 \$24,226.29 \$24,710.82	\$39,008.00 \$39,398.08 \$39,398.08 \$40,186.04 \$40,989.76 \$41,809.56	16 9 9 9 9
Lead Poisoning Inspector	02268	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$30,008.00 \$30,308.08 \$30,308.08 \$30,914.24 \$31,532.52 \$32,163.17	\$49,400.00 \$49,894.00 \$49,894.00 \$50,891.88 \$51,909.72 \$52,947.91	16 9 9 9 9
Lead Poisoning Inspector/Principal Sanitary Inspector	08038	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$57,880.00 \$58,458.80 \$58,458.80 \$59,627.98 \$60,820.54 \$62,036.95	\$72,462.00 \$73,186.62 \$73,186.62 \$74,650.35 \$76,143.36 \$77,666.23	8 9 9 9 9
Lead Poisoning Inspector/Senior Sanitary Inspector	0A713	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$55,000.00 \$55,550.00 \$55,550.00 \$56,661.00 \$57,794.22 \$58,950.10	\$69,559.00 \$70,254.59 \$70,254.59 \$71,659.68 \$73,092.87 \$74,554.73	8 9 9 9
License Inspector	02292	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$28,579.00 \$28,864.79 \$28,864.79 \$29,442.09 \$30,030.93 \$30,631.55	\$47,054.00 \$47,524.54 \$47,524.54 \$48,475.03 \$49,444.53 \$50,433.42	16 9 9 9 9
Plumbing Inspector	02704	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$50,012.00 \$50,512.12 \$50,512.12 \$51,522.36 \$52,552.81 \$53,603.87	\$62,559.00 \$63,184.59 \$63,184.59 \$64,448.28 \$65,737.25 \$67,052.00	8 9 9 9 9
Plumbing Subcode Official	05056	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$64,285.00 \$64,927.85 \$64,927.85 \$66,226.41 \$67,550.94 \$68,901.96	\$80,979.00 \$81,788.79 \$81,788.79 \$83,424.57 \$85,093.06 \$86,794.92	8 9 9 9 9
Registered Environmental Health Specialist	03097	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$50,012.00 \$50,512.12 \$50,512.12 \$51,522.36 \$52,552.81 \$53,603.87	\$62,559.00 \$63,184.59 \$63,184.59 \$64,448.28 \$65,737.25 \$67,052.00	8 9 9 9 9

Registered Environmental Health Specialist Trainee	03101	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$50,012.00 \$50,512.12 \$50,512.12 \$51,522.36 \$52,552.81 \$53,603.87	\$62,559.00 \$63,184.59 \$63,184.59 \$64,448.28 \$65,737.25 \$67,052.00	8 9 9 9 9
Sanitation Inspector	03110	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$31,033.00 \$31,343.33 \$31,343.33 \$31,970.20 \$32,609.60 \$33,261.79	\$45,306.00 \$45,759.06 \$45,759.06 \$46,674.24 \$47,607.72 \$48,559.87	10 9 9 9 9
Senior Building Inspector	03224	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$55,000.00 \$55,550.00 \$55,550.00 \$56,661.00 \$57,794.22 \$58,950.10	\$69,559.00 \$70,254.59 \$70,254.59 \$71,659.68 \$73,092.87 \$74,554.73	8 9 9 9 9
Senior Construction Inspector	3273	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$32,801.00 \$33,129.01 \$33,129.01 \$33,791.59 \$34,467.42 \$35,156.77	\$55,247.00 \$55,799.47 \$55,799.47 \$56,915.46 \$58,053.77 \$59,214.85	16 9 9 9 9
Senior Code Enforcement Officer	07379	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$32,761.00 \$33,088.61 \$33,088.61 \$33,750.38 \$34,425.39 \$35,113.90	\$55,247.00 \$55,799.47 \$55,799.47 \$56,915.46 \$58,053.77 \$59,214.85	16 9 9 9 9
Senior Electrical Inspector	03306	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$55,000.00 \$55,550.00 \$55,550.00 \$56,661.00 \$57,794.22 \$58,950.10	\$69,559.00 \$70,254.59 \$70,254.59 \$71,659.68 \$73,092.87 \$74,554.73	8 9 9 9 9
Senior Plumbing Inspector	03517	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$55,000.00 \$55,550.00 \$55,550.00 \$56,661.00 \$57,794.22 \$58,950.10	\$69,559.00 \$70,254.59 \$70,254.59 \$71,659.68 \$73,092.87 \$74,554.73	8 9 9 9 9
Senior Public Works Inspector	03539	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$50,012.00 \$50,512.12 \$50,512.12 \$51,522.36 \$52,552.81 \$53,603.87	\$62,559.00 \$63,184.59 \$63,184.59 \$64,448.28 \$65,737.25 \$67,052.00	16 9 9 9 9
Senior Transportation Inspector	03629	40	2009-2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016	\$25,891.00 \$26,149.91 \$26,149.91 \$26,672.91 \$27,206.37 \$27,750.50	\$37,784.00 \$38,161.84 \$38,161.84 \$38,925.08 \$39,703.58 \$40,497.65	11 9 9 9 9

7R1-V 110614

Supervising Building	05049	40	2009-2011	\$57,880.00	\$72,462.00	3
Inspector			2012	\$58,458.80	\$73,186.62	9
			2013	\$58,458.80	\$73,186.62	g
			2014	\$59,627.98	\$74,650.35	9
			2015	\$60,820.54	\$76,143.36	8
			2016	\$62,036.95	\$77,666.23	9
Supervising Code	07380	40	2009-2011	\$37,971.00	\$64,242.00	16
Enforcement Officer			2012	\$38,350.71	\$64,884.42	9
			2013	\$38,350.71	\$64,884.42	9
			2014	\$39,117.72	\$66,182.11	9
			2015	\$39,900.07	\$67,505.75	9
			2016	\$40,698.07	\$68,855.87	9
Transportation Inspector	04211	40	2009-2011	\$23,055.00	\$39,008.00	11
	7.767-501	1.0	2012	\$23,285.55	\$39,398.08	9
			2013	\$23,285.55	\$39,398.08	9
			2014	\$23,751.26	\$40,186.04	9
			2015	\$24,226.29	\$40,989.76	9
			2016	\$24,710.82	\$41,809.56	9
Water Inspector	04270	40	2009-2011	\$30,008.00	\$49,400.00	16
	0.2.0	40	2012	\$30,308.08	\$49,894.00	9
			2013	\$30,308.08	\$49,894.00	9
			2014	\$30,914.24	\$50,891.88	9
			2015	\$31,532.52	\$51,909.72	9
			2016	\$32,163.17	\$52,947.91	9
				402, .00171	401.,011.01	· ·
Water Meter Inspector	04272	40	2009-2011	\$23,055.00	\$39,008.00	16
			2012	\$23,285.55	\$39,398.08	9
			2013	\$23,285.55	\$39,398.08	9
			2014	\$23,751.26	\$40,186.04	9
			2015	\$24,226.29	\$40,989.76	9
			2016	\$24,710.82	\$41,809.56	9

SUMMARY FORM

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT PUBLIC SECTOR / NON-POLICE & NON-FIRE

Section I: Agreement Deta	ails								
Public Employer:	City of Newark County: Essex								
Employee Organization	American Federati	on of State, Count	y & Municipal Em	ployees AFL-CIO Loc	ocal 2299 Insp. Employees in Unit: 48				
Base Year Contract Term:	1/1/2006	12/31/2008	Nevr Contr	racl Term1/1/2000	9 12/	/31/2016			
Type of Settlement:	Mediated Settler	ment 🗀 F	act-Finder Recomme	ndation 🖸	Voluntary Settlement	Super	r Conciliation		
				umn A		umn B			
				· Total Costs evious agreement)		ear - Total Costs eccessor agreement)			
Section II: Economic					·····		1		
Item 1 Sal	ary		\$2,166,215		\$2,166,215				
Item 2 Inc	rement	_	\$0		\$0				
	gevity	_	\$60,735		\$70,109				
kem 4		_							
liem 5		-							
ttem 6	1	_							
llem 7		_			•				
ltem 8		_							
kem 9		_							
Item 10		_							
Item 11		- -					-		
Item 12		_							
Any additional items list on separate sh	ezi	Additional items							
Control III. Totale			00 000 050		***************************************		-		
Section III: Totals - Sum of cos	ts in each column			\$2,226,950		\$2,236,324			
			l (1	Total)	(T	o(al)			
						·/			
Section IV: Analysis of new success	sor agreement		NEW AGREE	EMENT ANALYSIS					
Total Base Year(previous agreement)	\$2,226,950	_							
Effective Date (m/d/yyyy)		1/1/2009	1/1/2010	1/1/2011	1/1/2012	1/1/2013	1/1/2014		
Percent Increase	gg-m-m-en-m	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	2%		
To bil cost of ancrease		\$70,109	\$72,692	\$85,443	\$95,384	\$148,407	\$115,768		
Total base salary (successor agreemen	§	\$2,236,324	\$2,308,466	\$2,321,217	\$2,490,047	\$2,594,340	\$2,714,819		
Section V: Impact of Settlem	ent - average annual inc	rease over term of ag	reement	 		==	=		
Percentage Impact (average per year o	var Germs of agreement)	0.01							
Doğu impact (overage per year over ter	m of agreement	\$115,142.00							
Section VI									
Health Inguience (Indicate costs associ	nied on each fine)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 ;						
		Base Year	Year I						
Cost of Health Plan		\$46,502,000	\$48,504,566	\$49,316,663	\$48,464,184	\$46,483,680	\$52,661,365		
Employee Contributions		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0		
	CONTROL OFFICE 16	\$15,173,000	\$18,622,429	\$23,782,708	\$20,640,253	\$22,983,504	\$20,608,215		
Dental	Here Charles Harland	\$2,789,000	\$3,073,484	\$3,129,672	\$3,259,560	\$2,728,222	\$2,528,258		
Vision		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0		
The undersigned certifies the ection VII	at the foregoing figures	are true and is awa	re that if any of the f	oregoing items are false	e, s/he is subject to p	unisment.			
Prepared by:	Dárlene Tai	to A	1	Total	Budget Office	er			
r repared by.	VIII A	Print Name	f	Tille:	Dauget Office	-			
	VIIII	ue In	To	Date:	9/24/2014				
	<u> </u>	Signature		Care.	21 -71 -014		-		

SUMMARY FORM

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT PUBLIC SECTOR / NON-POLICE & NON-FIRE

Section I: Agreement Deta						Facou		
Public Employer:	City of Newark County: Essex							
Employee Organization	American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees AFL-C10 Local 2299 Insp. Employees in Unit 48							
Base Year Contract Term:	1/1/2006	12/31/2008	New Contract Tem	n_1/1/2009	12/31/	2016		
Type of Settlement:	☐ Mediated Settl	emen1	act-Finder Recommendation	☑ Vo	Juntary Settlement	Super Conciliatio		
			Column A		Column	3		
			Base Year - Total ((Last Year of Previous ag	Costs reementy	Nevi Base Year - 1 (First Year of Success	otal Costs or agreement)		
Section II: Economic								
ltern 1	ary							
Hem 2 Inc	rement							
lien: 3 Lon	gevity	_						
Item 4								
Item 5		and the same of th						
ltem 6		_						
Item 7								
lien: 8		_						
liem 9] <u></u>					
llem 10		_						
lien 11								
Item 12								
Any additional items ist on separate sh	res	Additional flems		l ·				
Section IV: Analysis of new success Total Base Year(previous agreement)	or agreement		NEW AGREEMENT	ANALYSIS				
Effective Date (m/d/yyyy)		1/1/2015	1/1/2016					
Percent Increase		2%	2%	· · · · ·				
Total cost of increase		\$127,163	\$145,438					
Total base salary (successor agreement)	\$2,828,093	\$2,900,386					
Section V: Impact of Settleme	ent - average annual ir	crease over term of agr	eement					
Percentage Impact (average per year ov	er latm of agreement).	0.01						
Boller Impact (average per year over ten	n of agreement)	\$115,142.00						
Section VI								
Hoakh Insuranco (Indicato costs associa	log on each line)							
Cost of Fleath Plan		Base Year	You I					
Employee Contributions			\$56,580,900					
Prescription			\$0			·		
Deatal	CONTROL DO		\$18,812,650					
Vision			\$1,921,610 \$0					
The undersigned certifies that ection VII	I the foregoing figure	s are true and is aware	that if any of the foregoing	g ilems are false, s/	he is subject to punisa	nent.		
Prepared by:	/Barlege Ta	ite	A	Title: E	ludget Officer			
	(XIII)	Print Name	Lite	_)/24/2014			
	W. W. W.	Signature		_				



COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATIONS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Between the City of Newark And American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFL-CIO), Local 2299 (Inspectors)

May 22, 2014

Any Provisions that are no longer in effect and any and all language written in the Collective Negotiations Agreement that is a typographical or misspelling will be corrected in the final draft of the Agreement.

PREAMBLE

This Agreement, made and entered into this 1st day of January 2009, by and between the CITY OF NEWARK, IN THE COUNTY OF ESSEX, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey (herein referred to as the "City") and Local 2299, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO (INSPECTORS), (herein referred to as the "Union"), represents the complete and final understanding on all negotiable issues between the City and the Union and is designed to maintain and promote a harmonious relationship between the City and such of its employees who are covered by Article 1, Recognition, in order that a more efficient and progressive public service may be rendered.

ARTICLE V - UNION REPRESENTATIVES

Add New Paragraph F

The amount of time devoted to Association business other than the processing grievances shall not exceed, in the aggregate, five (5) man days per month.

ARTICLE VIII - COMPENSATION

The following paragraphs are proposed for insertion at the beginning of this Article:

Unless specifically provided for under this Article, the current practice regarding step progression/advancement shall cease effective January 1, 2009. Members shall remain at their current step placement for the duration of this Agreement. Instead of advancing to the next step within the salary range each January 1, the increases, if any shall be reflected in each employee's current step.

The Following sections shall be changed as follows:

Section A: 1:

Effective January 1, 2009, the 2008 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%.

Effective January 1, 2010, the 2009 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%.

Effective January 1, 2011, the 2010 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%.

Effective January 1, 2012, the 2011 base salary of all current employees shall be increased by one (1) Step in the newly devised nine (9) step salary range reflected and incorporated herein as "Appendix A".

Effective January 1, 2013, the 2012 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 0%. However, all eligible employees shall receive a one-time stipend of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00)¹.

Effective January 1, 2014, the 2013 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Effective January 1, 2015, the 2014 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Effective January 1, 2016, the 2015 base salary of all employees shall be increased by 2%.

Upon expiration of the contract, no base salary adjustments or salary increases to the base will be made until a successor agreement is reached.

Add new section:

For all purposes under this Article, longevity payments will be eliminated for any and all employees hired on or after 1/1/2014. Employees rehired through the Special Reemployment will be eligible for longevity payments provided that the original date of hire predates 1/1/2014.

¹ Eligible employees are defined as those active employees who are on the payroll at the time that the disbursement is due. It is understood that said payment in the amount of \$1,000.00 shall be a non-pensionable and a non-reoccurring one-time payment.

ARTICLE XIII - LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

Amend Article F, Bereavement Leave to read:

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be granted leave at full pay for up to three (3) working days per event, but no more than two (2) incidents within a calendar year with full pay in the event of death in the immediate family. Such leave shall be treated as administrative leave and not charged against the employees' leave record. Employees absent as a result of the death of an immediate family member shall submit verification of relationship. Verification shall include, death certificate, mortician affidavit, newspaper obituary or funeral program. Upon the employees return to work from said leave, they shall submit the verifying documentation to the Personnel Department which will be attached to their personnel file.

Immediate family is defined as: Spouse, Children, Parents, Legal Guardians, Mother-In-Law, Father-In-Law, Siblings, Grandparents, Step-parents, Step-Children, Foster Children, a domestic partner or member of a civil union, as defined in the "Domestic Partnership Act" (N.J.S.A. 26-8A-1 et seq.) and the "Civil Union Act" (N.J.S.A. 37:1-28, et seq.) respectively.

ARTICLE XI- HEALTH INSURANCE AND DEATH BENEFIT INSURANCE

Insert at beginning of Article:

The provisions of this Article shall be administered in accord with the provisions of P.L. 2011, Chapter 78, as presently provided.

The City shall provide Health Insurance, Dental Plan, and Prescription Plan to all eligible and enrolled employees and eligible dependents and eligible Civil Union partners as follows:

A. MEDICAL PLAN

The employee will be eligible for his choice of:

- 1. Horizon Traditional Plan (with \$250 per person Major Medical Deductible*); OR
- 2. Horizon Direct Access Plan; OR
- 3. Horizon Exclusive Provider Organization (EPO)

*Effective June 1, 2009, the lifetime Major Medical maximum for Horizon Traditional Plan increased from \$1,000,000 to UNLIMITED for active employees.

B. DENTAL PLAN

The employee will be eligible for his choice of:

- 1. Horizon Dental Choice Plan E (no benefits provided if utilizing the services of an out-of-network provider); OR
- 2. Horizon Dental Option Plan(Open Panel 80/20 plan); OR

3. Group Dental Health Administration (no benefits provided if utilizing the services of an out-of-network provider; this plan is available only to currently enrolled subscribers- no new enrollments will be accepted)

C. PRESCRIPTION PLAN

The employee will be eligible for a Prescription Drug Plan (with \$10 co-pay per prescription for "Brand" drugs and \$5 co-pay per prescription for "Generic" drugs)

- D. An employee represented by this collective bargaining unit who is eligible for dependent coverage under any medical, dental or prescription drug benefit plan sponsored by the City of Newark shall be entitled only to such dependent coverage for said plan and shall not be entitled to coverage as a subscriber to said health plan provided under this agreement except where more than one family member is represented by this Agreement, the subscriber shall be the employee family-member with the earliest date of birth.
- E. Effective January 1, 2007, all active employees will make a (non-refundable) ten dollar (\$10.00) per month contribution toward their retiree health benefits.

F. RETIREE BENEFITS

Eligible Retirees and their eligible dependents and eligible civil union partner will be entitled to lifetime health insurance coverage until their date of the retiree's death as indicated below.

Effective June 1, 2008:

- All Medicare (Parts A and B) eligible retirees and their eligible dependents (legal spouse or eligible Civil Union partner) will be ineligible for the City's traditional retiree health plan offered by Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey (hospitalization/medsurgical).
- All Medicare (Parts A and B) eligible/enrolled retirees and their eligible/enrolled spouse
 or Civil Union partners who are entitled to City funded retiree health benefits will be
 entitled to enroll in the contracted carrier provided Medicare retiree plan. The City
 agrees to assume the full employer billed cost of the carrier provided Medicare retiree
 plan for the eligibly enrolled population.
- The City will no longer provide a separate Medicare supplemental retirce health insurance plan for Medicare eligible retirees or their Medicare eligible dependents. The carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will be the sole employer sponsored retiree health benefit plan for all Medicare eligible retirees and their eligible spouse/Civil Union partners.

- The enrollment under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will be based on single member enrollment. Therefore, the eligible retiree and eligible spouse/Civil Union partner will be provided with separate enrollment under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan.
- All confirmed Medicare ineligible (based on notification from Medicare indicating Part A benefit is not "premium free") retirees and their spouse/Civil Union partner will be entitled to the traditional retiree health plan noted in their union contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.
- Eligible retiree's entitlement under the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan will continue for the remainder of the retiree's life.
- Medicare eligible retirees that reside outside of the 50 United States are ineligible to
 participate in the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan. Traditional retiree plan
 entitlement will continue for retirees, their spouses and eligible Civil Union partners that
 have permanent residence outside of the 50 United States. They will receive benefits in
 accordance with the contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.
- Retirees and their eligible spouse who are at least age 65 but ineligible (based on notification from Medicare) for Medicare Part A or B must submit the original notification letter they received from Medicare to the City. These retirees will be ineligible to enroll in the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan and must remain in the traditional retiree plan, receiving benefit levels in accordance with the union contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.
- Traditional retiree plan entitlement will continue for dependent children of the Medicare eligible retiree. The benefit levels will be provided in accordance with the contract or by health benefit entitlement established by ordinance.
- Uninterrupted member enrollment in the carrier provided Medicare retiree plan is contingent upon timely Part A/B premium payments to Medicare which are made by the Medicare eligible retiree and spouse.
- If reenrollment in the carrier provided Medicare plan is required, the enrollment will be subject to the established enrollment periods provided for the City subscribers and their eligible dependents.
- The City will provide eligible retirees and their eligible dependents or eligible Civil Union partner with a Prescription plan that requires a 20% copayment.

G. MEDICARE PART B REIMBURSEMENT

• All employees and their eligible spouses and/or civil union partners who retire on or after January 1, 1998, and who have earned Medicare Part A coverage shall be reimbursed by the City at the rate of fifty percent (50%) for the purchase of Medicare Part B upon proper notification by the retirees to the City. In no case will Part B reimbursement be made for a retroactive period beyond one year from date of notice by the retiree.

H. LIFE INSURANCE

- Effective January 1, 1997, Life insurance (death benefit and accidental death and dismemberment coverage) was eliminated for active employees and for those who retire on or after January 1, 1997.
- I. The City reserves the right to change insurance carriers or provide insurance on a self-insured basis during the lifetime of the Agreement so long as substantially similar benefits but no less than those presently in effect are provided. The City shall notify the Association if such change is made. In any event, there shall be no interruption of medical benefit coverage for employees covered by this Agreement.
- J. If health and medical insurance coverage, as described herein, is provided by a contract of insurance, the liability of the City shall be limited to the terms of the contract, provided the contract is in accord with the Agreement.

Amend Section I, paragraph 1 as follows:

There is a voluntary incentive cash waiver incentive program (Annual Payment = to 10% of the employee's share of the premium for each year that he or she waives coverage). Proof of alternate coverage shall be required. In the event of divorce, or loss of alternate coverage, the employee who voluntarily waived his/her coverage will be allowed to re-enroll in the benefit plans effective the first day of the month following divorce or loss of alternate coverage as currently administered and shall receive a pro-rata of their employee premium for the remainder of that calendar year.

ARTICLE X- VACATION LEAVE

Amend Section 1 as follows:

Replace Section 2:14-5, Title 2 of the Revised Ordinances of the City of Newark, New Jersey, 1966, with Rules and Regulations as provided in Section 2:24-6, Title 2 of the Revised General Ordinances of the City of Newark, New Jersey, 2000.

ARTICLE XII-SICK LEAVE

Amend Section A as follows:

Replace N.J.S.A. 11:24A et seq. to updated provision N.J.S.A. 11A:6-1, et seq.

ARTICLE XVII-TRAVEL ALLOWANCE AND UNIFORMS

Amend Section A to provide as follows:

As concerns employees covered by this Agreement, only when the City does not provide them with a city vehicle for their use in conducting business will such employee then receive a local travel allowance of \$25.00 per day for each day traveled on city business.

Amend Section B to provide as follows:

- 1. Effective January 1, 2009, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
- 2. Effective January 1, 2010, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
- 3. Effective January 1, 2011, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year
- 4. Effective January 1, 2012, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600,00) per year.
- 5. Effective January 1, 2013, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
- 6. Effective January 1, 2014, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
- 7. Effective January 1, 2015, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.
- 8. Effective January 1, 2016, employees covered in this Agreement shall be entitled to a clothing allowance in the amount of six-hundred dollars (\$600.00) per year.

ARTICLE XXV-DURATION

Shall be changed to read as follows:

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of January 1, 2009, and shall remain in effect up to and including December 31, 2016, without any reopening date. The Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter, unless one party or the other gives written notice to the other, at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement of their desire to change, modify or terminate the Agreement.

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT IS CONTINGENT UPON THE RATIFICATION OF THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES (AFL-CIO), Local 2299 (INSPECTORS), AND APPROVAL OF THE NEWARK MUNICIPAL COUNCIL.

FOR THE CITY OF NEWARK

FOR THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL 2299 **EMPLOYEES** (AFL-CIO), LOCAL (INSPECTORS)

JUĽIEN X. NEALS

Business Administrator

ALBERTO YENTURA

President

STEVE TULLY, AFSCME COUNCIL 52

As to Legality and Form